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Maintenance Arrangements 

The Parks Committee   
The Parks Committee is made up of 11 members, including the chairs of the other 
committees and the Mayor. The park keeper has a standing agenda item to report back to 
the committee on issues and upcoming works in the park.  

The committee meets quarterly although extra meetings can be called if necessary, and all 
meetings are open to the public and live streamed on the Councilôs Facebook page. 
Meetings are in the Town Hall Council Chamber and are on a Monday night usually starting 
at 7pm. The committee is supported by OTC officers including the Town Clerk, Park Keeper, 
and Admin Officer.  

 The committees responsibilities  

To carry out the Councilôs responsibilities for the following: 

i. The provision of grounds maintenance services for: 
a. Simmons Park, Plattôs Meadow, Putting Green; 
b. Simmons Park car park and approach road; 
c. Skate Park/BMX Track; Clapps Wood, Fairplace, land behind Lidl, grass verge at 

West Bridge, and all land in the ownership of Okehampton Town Council 
(excepting the footprint of the Town Hall, Charter Hall, Cinema, Lower Market Hall 
and Public Toilets at Fairplace) 

d. Land owned by others including the raised flower bed and seating area in New 
Road, the Gateway Mural area at the junction of East Street and Crediton Road 
and the planted area off the roundabout in School Way 

e. cemetery; and 
f. bus shelters x 3, some wayside seats and bins 

 

Budget  

To have authority for spending within the allocated budget. 

 

Fees  

To determine and keep under review the fees and charges for the committeeôs services 
where statutory authority exists for the levying of such charges. 

 

Payment of Expenses  

To have authority to authorise cheque and BACS payments for all invoices and expenses.  

 
 

Monitoring and Plan Review 
 

The plan is to be current over a ten-year period, from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2031. 
It is to be reviewed by three dates: 

i) by 31 December 2025; 

ii) by 31 December 2028; 



iii) by 31 December 2031, at which time a second ten-year management plan is to be 
produced. 

This plan is to apply to Simmons Park and Kempley Meadows (pleasure grounds), the 
boundary of which is set out in the restoration plan.  In future the plan may be extended to 
cover other amenities venues throughout the parish of Okehampton. 

The following objectives of management are derived from the restoration plan: 

i) to improve the maintenance of historic features, details, surfaces and surviving 
structures across the park; 

ii) to manage the parkôs surviving historic structures, planting and features based on 
the evidence of the Ordnance Survey second edition, 1932 revision, and historic 
photographs; 

iii) to conserve and improve the wildlife value of the site and public appreciation of 
wildlife, by managing and the diverse range of habitat types, consistent with the 
objective of conserving the designed historic landscape; 

iv) to maintain access across and to the park for people with disabilities; 

v) to seek public co-operation and consensus over the management of the park as 
and when such opportunities arise; 

vi) to encourage public use and activity within the park by maintaining the sense of 
security and by using the park for public events where this can be achieved without 
physical damage to the heritage asset or disruption of the quiet public enjoyment of 
the park. 

 

The management proposals which follow respond to the description of the park set out in the 
restoration plan and the above objectives. 

 

Background Information 

Historical Development 
Simmons Park is situated 250m south of the centre of Okehampton, to the west of the East 
Okement River which flows from south-east to north forming the eastern boundary of the site. 
The 4ha site is bounded to the north by Mill Road, from which it is separated by low granite 
walls. Forming part of the early C20 layout of the park, these walls formerly supported iron 
railings which were removed during the Second World War. The south-east boundary is 
formed by a traditional Devon hedge and bank which separates the park from an area of 
public open space extending east along the valley of the East Okement River. To the west 
the site adjoins the boundaries of early C20 villas on the east side of Station Road. The park 
is separated from these properties by a fence and walls following the crest of the steep east- 
and north-east-facing escarpment above the river. The park occupies this escarpment and a 
narrow strip of level ground extending along the west bank of the river. There are extensive 
views south-east along the river valley towards Dartmoor and Okehampton Park, and further 
views east across the recreation ground, sports pitches, and school grounds on the east side 
of the river. 
 

In the late 19th century the arrival of the railway and the development of extensive quarries 
outside Okehampton led to the expansion of the town, with new residential development 
taking place between the ancient centre of the town and the railway station about 1 kilometre 



to the south-south-east. Beside the East Ockment River in Okehampton there was an area 
called Jole's Meadow (also known as Hilly Field) and Jole's Bere Wood (also known as 
Solon's Copse after once belonging to Solon Luxmoore). This meadow and wood was 
already a local beauty spot and favourite playground for children. It came on to the market in 
1905 and there was concern it might be built on. Okehampton Town Council bought the land 
on 30th September 1905 for £1,000, on a mortgage from Dingley and Pearse's Bank and 
then applied to the Local Government Board for sanction to raise a loan of £1,250  
The extra money was to be spent on laying out the new park. This was turned down but 
Sydney Simmons heard about the plan and decided to make the Town Council an offer they 
could not refuse. He offered to buy the land from the Council, give the park to the people of 
Okehampton and lay out the park at his own expense, provided he was allowed a free hand 
in its design.  

 
 
 
 
 
The new park was 
laid out to the 
designs of Francis 
Worden, Borough 
Architect and 
Engineer, who 
worked in close 
consultation with the 
donor. As part of his 
benefaction, Sydney 
Simmons required 

that alms-houses should be built within the park. Three structures 
comprising five alms-houses were incorporated into Worden's plan. 
 

The park comprised a picturesque riverside walk, woodland paths, cascade, a group of 
picturesque structures including a Swiss chalet and two lodges, and areas of formal gardens 
incorporating a series of relocated architectural fragments. These are shown on the 
Ordnance Survey map of 1932 and survive essentially unchanged today. 
 
This offer was accepted and work started on the park, which was more lavishly laid out than 
Town Council could afford even with Sydney Simmons spending £3,000 on buildings and 
landscaping.  
 



The Council borrowed £300 from 
the Oddfellows to cover the cost of 
the gates and railings; the rest was 
paid for by Sydney Simmons. He 
wanted to call it Sinin Dale or Vale 
but he was talked out of this idea. It 
opened to the Public on 8th July 
1907 by the Lord Mayor of London, 
the Right Honourable Sir William 
Purdie Treloar and enlarged in 
1909.  
 
 
The following year Sydney 
Simmons gave Friary Park, Finchley 

to the local people at a cost of 
£7,000. Friary Park is twinned  
 Friary Park is on land formerly around The Friary/Friern House, built in the C19th. The site 
was acquired in 1909 and opened as a public park in 1910. At the park's highest point is a 
large bronze statue of The Peacemaker, donated by Sydney Simmons JP and dedicated to 
Edward VII, who had died just before the new park was due to be officially opened. The park 
was laid out with bowling green and pavilion, tennis courts, putting green and playground, 
with more formal gardens around the house, now a café. 

 
 
 
 
A bandstand was constructed in 1911 to commemorate the coronation of King George V 
(inscription); this structure was partially demolished in the mid 20th century 
 
In 1921 Okehampton Town Council acquired Kempley Meadows, which now forms part of 
Simmons Park, and Sydney Simmons provided the funds to have the recreation grounds, 



including a bowling green, laid out with it being a condition that the work be done by the men 
of the town who were out of work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Bowling 

Club celebrated the 100-year anniversary in 2022 and is expanding their club house to 
accommodate the increase in membership and to add facilities for the lady bowlers.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Land to the east of the East Okement River was laid out as a recreation ground with sports 
pitches and a pavilion in the 1930s. Okehampton Grammar School was constructed to the 
north-east of the park in the same period. A swimming pool and other facilities were 
developed at the recreation ground in the late 20th century 
 
 
 



In 2002, Simmons Park was refurbished, the works being funded by Okehampton Town 
Council, the Heritage Lottery Fund and individual donations. The works included the 
restoration of the beautiful woodland walks and the addition of a rose garden to celebrate 
Her Majesty's Golden Jubilee. 

 
 
Since then the park has 
grown to include multi-
sports facilities, play areas 
for all ages and the 
Parklands Leisure Centre. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The original swimming pool opened in the 
1960ôs has been filled in and replaced 
with a childrens play area and gym.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The original pavillion was demolished and a new building was put up on the edge of the site. 
A putting green was created next to the leisure centre and it is hoped to upgrade the facilities 
available with an adventure golf course based on features of Okehampton.  
 
 

 


